SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee

Meeting held 26 September 2022

PRESENT: Councillors Richard Williams (Chair), Paul Wood (Deputy Chair),

Marieanne Elliot (Group Spokesperson), Sue Alston, Tony Downing, Alan Hooper, Bernard Little, Karen McGowan and Mary Lea (Substitute

Member)

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

1.1 Apologies for absence was received from Councillor Peter Price.

2. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

2.1 RESOLVED: That the public and press be excluded from the meeting before discussion takes place on the appendix to item 11 of on the agenda (Item 10 of the minutes) on the grounds that, if the public and press were present during the transaction of such business, there would be a disclosure to them of exempt information as described in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.1 There were no declarations of interest made.

4. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

4.1 The minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 June 2022 were approved as a correct record.

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS

- 5.1 Andy Chaplin attended the Committee and asked the following questions:
- 5.1.1 We would ask the Committee to scrutinise the development of the initial plans and the procurement process.

We would ask the committee to satisfy themselves that allocating £207k to the scheme makes financial sense.

Assuming that a hub and spoke model is beneficial for making tennis sustainable we still believe that Hillsborough Park is not the best location for the scheme. In this regard we would ask the Committee to satisfy themselves with the following issues as and when procurement proposals are received.

- 1. Does it make sense to reconfigure a well-used space that is still in a reasonable condition?
- 2. Is the loss of 2/3rds of the current MUGA area an acceptable loss of free to

- use space?
- 3. Are there adequate arrangements being made for Cycling4All?
- 4. Will the smaller MUGA be free and available to use at any time for casual play?
- 5. Is it acceptable that the number of Sheffield's floodlit tennis courts will reduce from 4 to 3?
- 6. Is the £207k of S106 money being used correctly, as specified, on a MUGA replacement?
- 7. Who bears and what is the cost of moving 3 tennis courts to facilitate Tramlines entry gates?
- 8. Is the view of the public consultation against a fully indoor space on the site being heeded?
- 9. Will all income generated in Hillsborough Park be used for the benefit of the park?
- 10. What evidence is there that the proposed scheme will increase physical activity compared to the current tennis and informal MUGA usage?
- 5.1.2 The Chair stated that written responses would be sent out to the questions. It was also clarified by the Chair that officers are working on solutions.
- 5.2 Anisa Haroon had a question regarding Mather Road Playground. Dave Cronshaw had a question regarding a Golf Course. Both were not present at the meeting. The Chair promised written responses.

 (Note: written responses to questions will also be subsequently published on the website)

6. WORK PROGRAMME

- 6.1 The Principal Democratic Services Officer presented the Work Programme and informed Committee that although it contained suggestions for what it may contain, it was up to the Committee to decide. The Committee were asked to agree the set of recommendations in the report and give consideration to any necessary additions and amendments. Referrals in section 2.0 of the report were also pointed out.
- 6.1.1 Members raised questions and responses were given surrounding the reasons for movement of agenda items to the Finance Sub Committee and discussions around development. There was some discussion around the way in which budget and spending works within the committee system.
- 6.1.2 The Chair read out the referrals from section 2.0 of the Work Programme and stated the other Committees they would be referred onto where needed.
- 6.2 **RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY**:
 - 1. That the Committee's work programme, as set out in Appendix 1 be agreed, including any additions and amendments identified in Part 1;
 - 2. That consideration be given to the further additions or adjustments to the work programme presented at Part 2 of Appendix 1; and
 - 3. That Members give consideration to any further issues to be explored by officers for inclusion in Part 2 of Appendix 1 of the next work programme report, for potential addition to the work programme.

7. UPDATE ON THE PUBLIC FACING SPORT AND LEISURE STRATEGY

7.1 The Project Officer provided an update to the Committee on the Public Facing Sport and Leisure Strategy including the consultation, key findings, themes and next steps.

8. PLAYING PITCH STRATEGY

- 8.1 The Project Officer presented the report which sought approval for the adoption of the Sheffield City Council Playing Pitch Strategy 2022. This Strategy focusses on the supply and demand for playing pitches within the city and provides general and sport specific recommendations and actions The Strategy was undertaken by independent consultants and uses the methodology prescribed by Sport England.
- 8.2 **RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY:** That the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee:-
 - 1. Approve the adoption of the Playing Pitch Strategy for Sheffield as set out in this report.

8.3 Reasons for Decision

- 8.3.1 The Playing Pitch Strategy for Sheffield provides a framework for improvement and, although resources may not currently be in place to implement it, partners and possible sources of external funding have been identified. Collaborative working, strong partnerships, and good local governance will be critical towards achieving strategic potential and future successes ahead.
- 8.3.2 The Playing Pitch Strategy needs to be formally adopted by Sheffield City Council to provide the framework and inform the City's future priorities in conjunction with Sport England and the sports NGB's. By adopting this strategy, we can start to engage with a range of stakeholders to consider delivering key projects across Sheffield. These projects will align with local need and demand, therefore supporting effective and efficient use of resources.
- 8.3.3 In moving forward, we need to be realistic about what is achievable, and who is best placed to deliver on the key aspects of the Strategy. The council will remain accountable for the delivery of the Playing Pitch Strategy and the Action Plan and providing expertise to seek resources to support that delivery.
- 8.3.4 The Council will engage with partners to discuss the Playing Pitch Strategy action plan and how projects can be developed. The Strategy will be used to provide a robust evidence base to aid decision making in respect of future provision and management of grass pitches and built sports provision. The Steering Group will continue to meet, to ensure the delivery and implementation of the Playing Pitch Strategy recommendations and actions, as well as ensuring the evidence and data remain up to date.

8.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected

- 8.4.1 The alternative option is to not adopt the Playing Pitch Strategy. This option is not recommended due to the following risks:
 - There is a risk that without an adopted strategy the council would be unable to negotiate effectively with developers where proposals have an impact on

the provision of open space, sport and recreation facilities

 There is a risk that without an adopted strategy Sport England and the Sport's Governing Bodies will not consider applications for external funding from the council or from any sports club within the city, and additionally if not kept up to date it would not be considered an up-to-date robust assessment needed to inform planning decisions.

9. BUDGET MONITORING - MONTH 4

- 9.1 The Director of Finance and Commercial Services presented the report which brought the Committee up to date with the Council's financial position as at Month 4 2022/23.
- 9.2 **RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY:** That the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee:-
 - 1. Note the Council's challenging financial position as at the end of July 2022 (month 4).

9.3 Reasons for Decision

9.3.1 By the law the Council must set and deliver a balanced budget, which is a financial plan based on sound assumptions which shows how income will equal spend over the short- and medium-term. This can take into account deliverable cost savings and/or local income growth strategies as well as useable reserves.

9.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected

9.4.1 The Council is required to both set a balance budget and to ensure that in-year income and expenditure are balanced. No other alternatives were considered.

10. BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR YEAR 2023/2024

10.1 The Director of Parks, Leisure and Libraries presented the report which set out the budget pressures and risks facing the services that are the responsibility of the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee (CPLC), and a budget action plan to mitigate these as far as possible in the 23/24 financial year.

It provided recommendations for approval which will allow the services to contribute to Sheffield City Council's ability to set a balanced budget.

- 10.2 **RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY:** That the Communities, Parks and Leisure Policy Committee:-
 - Acknowledges the recommendation approved at the Strategy and Resources Committee on 5 July 2022 that "Policy Committees will be asked to develop savings / additional income options that cover their own

pressures – in effect cash standstill" and to "require Policy Committees to report at their meetings in September on how they can balance their budgets."

- 2. Notes, as this Committee's initial response to the Strategy and Resources Committee's request, the set of budget proposals set out in this report [and in any appendices]
- 3. Notes that Officers will now work with Members to consult with relevant stakeholders (including with partners, trades unions and in respect of equalities and climate change) on the proposals in this report so as to inform final budget proposals.
- 4. Notes that Officers will work to develop any necessary detailed implementation plans for the proposals in this report so that the proposals, if ultimately approved, can be implemented as planned before or during the 2023/24 financial year.
- 5. Ask to receive a further report in November that will set out the final budget for this Committee following consultation and any adjustments requested by the Strategy and Resources Committee.

10.3 Reasons for Decision

Members were asked to note the unsustainable financial position highlighted by the medium-term financial analysis presented to Strategy and Resources Committee in July 2022. This report and its recommendations, sets out the scale of the challenge ahead, the limited resources available and some of the difficult decisions that will need to be taken.

10.4 Alternatives Considered and Rejected

The Council is required to both set a balance budget and to ensure that in-year income and expenditure are balanced. All the options to achieve this were presented to this Committee for consideration.